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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Market City Resources Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Market City Resources Private Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 315t March 2024, and the Statement of Profit
and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of cash flows and Statement of

Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaidfinancial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31t March
2024, and its profit including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity for
the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10)of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report, but does
not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The annual report is
expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or

otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
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When we read the annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein,
we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5)of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of
the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in
equity and cash flows of the Companyin accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133
of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and applicationof appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparationand presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report thatincludes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

+ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating
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effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management use of the going concern basis of
accounting in preparation of financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

+  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
thedisclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of Section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure A” a statementon the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to
the extent applicable.

2. (A) Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company sofar as it appears from our examination of those books.

c¢) The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive
income), the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31%
March, 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 315 March, 2024 from being appointed as a Director in terms of
Section 164(2) of the Act. z

Continuation Sheet...
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f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such
controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”.

g) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended 315t March, 2024
has been paid by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of
section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

(B) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 110of the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

a) The Company does not have any pending litigation which could impact it’s
financial position.

b) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

c¢) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

d) (i) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds
or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in
any other persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall: '

* directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the
Company or

= provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

(ii) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds have been received by the Company from any persons or entities,
including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall:

= directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any mannerwhatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the
Funding Party or

= provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

(i) Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe
that the representations under sub-clause (d) (i) and (d) (ii) contain any material
mis-statement.

Continuation Sheet...
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e) The interim dividend declared and paid by the company during the year and until
the date of audit report is in accordance with Section 123 of the Act.

f) Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used an
accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year
for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of
our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered
with.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from
Ist April, 2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 on preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record
retention is not applicable for the financial year ended 31st March, 2024.

ForD T S & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration. No.: 142412W/W-100595)

D5
Umesh B. Nayak
Partner
(Membership No. 101183)
UDIN: 24101183BKGWMH3704
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Place: Mumbai
Date: 141" May 2024
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“Annexure A” to the Independent Auditor’s Report on Financial Statements

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under “Report on other legal and regulatory requirements”

of our report of even date to the members of Market City Resources Private Limited on the
Financial Statements for the year ended on 315 March, 2024)

() (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,

(i)

(iii)

including quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of
Intangible Assets. :

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme
of physical verification of its Property, Plant and Equipment by which all property,
plant and equipment are verified in a phased manner over a period of three years. In
accordance with this programme, certain property, plant and equipment were verified
during the year. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined
by us, the Company do not have any immovable properties (other than immovable
properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly
executed in favour of the Company) in the financial statements, hence reporting
under 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its
Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible
assets or both during the year.

(e) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or
pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the
Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made
thereunder.

(a) As the Company had no inventories during the year, clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

(b) During the year, the Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in
excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on
the basis of security of current assets hence the provisions of clause 3(ii)(b) of
the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not made any investments, granted secured/ unsecured loans/advances
in nature of loans, or stood guarantee, or provided security to any parties. Therefore, the

Continuation Sheet...
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the reporting under clauses 3(iii)(a), 3(iii)(b), 3(ii)(c), 3(iii)(d), 3(iii)(e) and 3(iii)(f) of
the order are not applicable to the Company.

(iv) The Company has not granted any loans or made any investments or provided any
guarantees or security to the parties covered under Section 185 and 186. Therefore,
the reporting under clause 3(iv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

W) The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be
deposits from the public within the meaning of section 73,74,75 and 76 of the Act
and the Rules framed there under to the extent notified. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of
the Order is not applicable.

(vi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government
has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act
for the services provided by it. Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of the Order is not
applicable.

(vii) (a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing with appropriate
authorities undisputed statutory dues including Provident fund, Employees’ State
Insurance, Income-tax, Sales-tax, Goods and Services tax, Duty of customs, Duty
of excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other Statutory Dues as applicable to it.

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund,
Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales Tax, Goods and Service tax, Duty
of customs, Duty of excise, Value added tax, Cess and Other Statutory Dues as
applicable were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, there are no statutory dues referred to
in sub-clause (a) which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or
disclosed any transactions, previously unrecorded as income in the books of account,
in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

(ix) (a) As the Company does not have any loans or other borrowings from any lender as at
the balance sheet date, hence reporting under clause 3(ix)(a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
audit procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared wilful Defaulter
by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

Continuation Sheet...
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(¢) According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information
and explanations given to us, the Company has not obtained any term loans.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures
performed by us, and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the
Company, we report that no funds raised on short term basis have been used for
long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall
examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that the
Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to
meet the obligations of its associate. The Company does not have any subsidiary
or joint venture.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures
performed by us, we report that the Company has not raised loans during the year
on the pledge of securities held in its associate. The Company does not have any
subsidiary or joint venture.

(a) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further
public offer(including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares /fully or partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year
under audit.

(a) Based on the audit procedure performed by us and according to the information
and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or material fraud on the
Company has been noticed or reported during the course of the audit.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-
section (12)of Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-
4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
with the Central Government

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints
received by the Company during the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable
to it, the reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the
provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013. The details of such related party
transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required under Indian
Accounting Standard 24 “Related Party Disclosures” specified under Section 133 of the
Act. Further, the Company is not required to constitute an audit committee under section
177 of the Act, and accordingly, to this extent, the reporting under clause 3(xiii) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

Continuation Sheet...
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(xiv) (a) Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures,

in our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the
size and nature of its business.

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for
the period under audit.

(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected to its directors and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not
applicable to the Company.

(xvi) (a) The provisions of section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of
1934) are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the provisions of clause
3(xvi)(a) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not
commented upon.

(b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities during the year.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made
by Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

(d) As represented by the management, the group does not have any Core Investment
Company (CIC) as part of the Group as per the definition of Group contained in the
Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately
preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly,
clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the
financial ratios disclosed in Note No 35 to the financial statement, ageing and expected
dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting theassumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to
believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the
Company is not capable of meetingits liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet
as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We,
however, state that this is not an assurance as to the futureviability of the Company.
We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the dateof the audit
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the
Companyas and when they fall due.

Continuation Sheet...
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(xx) (a) In respect of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts that are

required to be transferred to a fund specified in Schedule VII of the Act, in compliance
with second proviso to sub section 5 of section 135 of the Act.

(b) The Company has transferred the amount of Corporate Social Responsibility
remaining unspent under sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Act pursuant to
ongoing project/(s) to a special account in compliance with the provision of
sub- section (6) of Section 135 of the Act. Details are as given below:

Financial | Amount to | Amount Amount Amount Amount not
year® be spent in | remaining transferred | transferred | transferred
accordanc |unspent as |to Special |to Special |to Special
e with | at the year- | Bank Bank Bank
section end to be |Accountu/s | Account u/s | Account u/s
135(5) transferred 135(6), 135(6), 135(6), till
special within 30 | after a |the date of
account u/s |days from | periodof30 | audit
135(6) (Rs. |end of |days from | report
In lakhs) financial end of
year (or till | financial
the date of |year  (till
audit the date of
report, if | audit
that is | report)
earlier)
(@) (b) (c) @ (© ®
2023-24 58.44 58.34 58.34 - -
For DTS & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

(Firm’s Registration No. 142412W/W-100595)

Kl

Umesh B. Nayak

Partner

(Membership No. 101183)

UDIN: 24101183BKGWMH3704

Place: Mumbai
Date: 14th May 2024
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ report on the financial statements of Market
City Resources Private Limited for the period ended 31tMarch 2024.

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial
statements underClause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’section of our report of even date)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to-financial statements of Market
City Resources Private Limited (“the Company™) as of 315March 2024 in conjunction with our
audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013
(hereinafter referred to as “the Act”).

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note andthe Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act,
to the extent applicable to an auditof internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Noterequire that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were established and
maintained and whether such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
included obtaining an understanding of such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatementof the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for ouraudit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements.

Continuation Sheet...
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Meaning of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A Company'sinternal financial controls with reference to financial statements include
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally acceptéd accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the Company are being madeonly in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatementsdue to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
referenceto financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as
at 31%* March 2024,based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“the Guidance Note™).

For DTS & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 142412W/W-100595)

Umesh —B. Nayak
Partner

(Membership No. 101183)
UDIN: 24101183BKGWMH3704

Place: Mumbai
Date: 14" May 2024
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Marketcity Resource Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024

{Amount in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

ASSETS
Non-current assets

Property, Plant and Equipment
Right of use assets

Intangible assets
Financial assets
Investments

Other financial assets
Deferred tax asset (net)
Income Tax assest (Net )
Other non-current assets
Total non-current assets

Current assets
Financial assets
Investments
Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Other financial assets
Other current assets
Total current assets

Total assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

Equity share capital
Other equity

Total equity

Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities

Lease Liabilities
Provisions
Total non-current liabilities

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Lease Liabilities
Trade payables
i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises
Other financial liabilities
Provisions
Other current liabilities
Total current liabilities

Total liabilities
Total equity and liabilities

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per Our report of even date

For D T S & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No : 142412W/W100595

¢

Umesh B. Nayak
Partner
Membership No. 101183

Place: Mumbai
Date: 14th May 2024

Notes

6A

13
14

10
11
12

15
16

6A
17

6A
18

19
17
20

1to 40

Asat Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
665.21 312.61
2,666.83 =
25.09 33.03
2,555.51 55.50
451 4.51
299.86 286.49
494.06 559.25
25.88 2.11
6,736.95 1,253.50
1,781.69 3,247.08
4,932.02 6,489.21
853.71 790.18
47.98 40.54
520.89 119.78
8,136.29 10,686.78
14,873.24 11,940.29
1.00 1.00
8,310.46 8,871.62
8,311.46 8,872.62
2,104.71 -
698.24 727.13
2,802.95 727.13
627.26 =
6.22 0.08
875.73 563.20
159.61 140.34
190.28 137.70
1,899.73 1,499.22
3,758.83 2,340.54
6,561.78 3,067.67
14,873.24 11,940.29

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Marketcity Resource Private Limited
CIN: U55100MH2006PTC159544

Vg

Director
DIN. 10045816

Place: Mumbai
Date: 14th May 2024
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Prashant Khandelwal
Director
DIN. 08067106

Place: Mumbai
Date: 14th May 2024



Marketcity Resource Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March 2024
(Amount in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended Year ended

Particulars Notes 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Income
Revenue from operations 21 17,847.70 15,865.40
Other income 22 177.09 79.34
Total income 18,024.79 15,944.74
Expenses
Employee benefits expense 23 7,581.40 6,428.78
Finance costs 24 19.15 -
Depreciation and amortization expense 25 258.18 218.94
Other expenses 26 3,101.75 2,530.89
Total expenses 10,960.48 9,178.61
Profit before tax 7,064.31 6,766.13
Income Tax expense

Current tax 27 1,759.82 1,757.94

Deferred tax 27 (7.08) (91.33)
Total income tax expense 1,752.74 1,666.61
Profit for the year 5,311.57 5,099.52
Other comprehensive income
a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Re-measurement losses on defined benefit plans (25.01) (57.68)

b) Income Tax relating to the ltem that will not be reclassified to Profit or loss 6.29 14.52
Other Comprehensive Losses for the year (18.72) (43.16)
Total comprehensive income for the year 5,292.85 5,056.36
Earnings per share (Face Value INR 10 each) 28

Basic earnings per share (INR} 53,115.69 50,995.18

Diluted earnings per share (INR) 53,115.69 50,995.18
See accompanying notes to the financial statements 1to 40
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per Our report of even date
For DTS & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Marketcity Resource Private Limited
Firm's Registration No : 142412W/W100595 CIN: U55100MH2006PTC159544

Koyl ) T T

Umesh B. Nayak Akup/Sethi Prashant Khandelwal
Partner Director Director
Membership No. 101183 DiN. 10045816 DIN. 08067106

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Place: Mumbai

Date: 14th May 2024 Date: 14th May 2024 Date: 14th May 2024




Marketcity Resource Private Limited
Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Amount in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Cash flow from operating activities
Profit/ (Loss) before tax

Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization expenses
(Gain)/Loss on Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment
(Gain)/Loss on fair valuation of investments measured at FVTPL
Sundry balances written back
Interest Income
Interest Expense on IndAS Adjustments
Share Based payments to employees
(Gain)/Loss on Sale of investments
Operating profit/loss before working capital changes

Changes in working capital
Trade and Other Receivables
Trade and Other Payables

Cash generated from operations

Less: Income taxes paid (Net)
Net cash inflows/used from/in operating activities (A)

Cash flow from investing activities
Payment for property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of Mutual Funds
Sale of Mutual Funds
Term Deposits Matured
Equity Investments

Interest Recelved
Net cash inflows/used from/in investing activities (B)

Cash flow from financing activities
Lease Libility

Dividend Paid
Net cash inflows/used from/in financing activities (C)

Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per the cash flow statement
Cash and cash equivalents comprise

Balances with banks

Cash on hand

Fixed Deposits with Bank
Total cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

See accompanying notes to the financial statements 11t0 40
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For D T S & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No.: 142412W / W100595

F

Ao <%\

~N o N
-- ©

Umesh B. Nayak
Partner
Membership No. 101183

Place: Mumbai
Date: 14th May 2024

Year ended
31 March 2024

Year ended
31 March 2023

7,064.31 6,766.13
258.18 218.94
(0.23) -
4.3 (61.77)
: 0.34
(1.06) (4.75)
19.15 -
145.98 231.99
(220.05) (11.47)
7,310.57 7,139.41
999.17 (3,419.87)
762.14 2,025.49
9,071.88 5,745.03
(1,825.01) (2,336.04)
7,246.86 3,408.99
(3,057.25) (173.60)
1.50
(11,502.33) (4,723.40)
13,143.15 1,715.25
: 100.00
(2,500.01)
1.12 4.75
(3,915.31) (3,075.50)
2,731.98 -
(6,000.00)
(3,268.02) -
63.53 333.49
790.18 456.69
853.71 790.18
853.58 689.78
0.13 0.40
= 100.00
853.71 790.18

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Marketcity Resource Private Limited
CIN: U55100MH2006PTC159544

QﬁSethi

Director
DIN. 10045816

Place: Mumbai
Date: 14th May 2024

(7 SO 3 B

Prashant Khandelwal
Director
DIN. 08067106

Place: Mumbai
Date: 14th May 2024



Marketcity Resource Private Limited
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2024
{Amount in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(A) Equity share capital

For the year ended 31 March 2024

10,000 ( PY : 10,000 ) Equity Shares of ¥ 10/- each
Balance as at 1 April 2023

Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior period errors
Balance as at 31 March 2024

For the year ended 31 March 2023

10,000 ( PY : 10,000 ) Equity Shares of ¥ 10/- each
Balance as at 1 April 2022

Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior period errors
Balance as at 31 March 2023

(B) Other equity

Amount
1.00

1.00

For the year ended 31 March 2024
Other Total Equity
Reserve and Surplus Comprehensive
Income
. I;etalined Share Remeasurement of
aInInEs Based net defined benefit
Payment plans
Reserve
Balance as at 1 April 2023 7,835.30 | 1,203.18 (166.85) 8,871.62
Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors - - - -
Balance as at 1 April 2023 7,835.30 | 1,203.18 (166.85) 8,871.62
Profit for the year 5,311.57 - - 5,311.57
Dividend paid * (6,000.00) 3 - (6,000.00)
Share based payment - 145.98 7 145.98
Remeasurements gain /(loss)** = - {18.71) (18.71)
Balance as at 31 March 2024 7,146.87 | 1,349.16 (185.56) 8,310.45
For the year ended 31 March 2023
Other Total
Reserve and Surplus Comprehensive
Income
R Reta!ned Share Remeasurement of
Earnings Based net defined benefit
Payment plans
Reserve
Balance as at 1 April 2022 2,735.78 971.19 (123.69) 3,583.27
Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors - - - -
Balance as at April 2022 2,735.78 971.19 {123.69) 3,583.28
Profit for the year 5,099.52 - - 5,099.52
Share based payment - 231.99 - 231.99
Remeasurements gain /(loss) - = {43.16) (43.16)
Balance as at 31 March 2023 7,835.30 | 1,203.18 {166.85) 8,871.62

** Net of Tax

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

For D T S & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No : 142412W/W100595

Umesh B. Nayak
Partner
Membership No. 101183

Place: Mumbai
Date: 14th May 2024

1to 40

* During the year the Company have paid Interim dividend of Rs 60,000/- per equity share of INR 10/- each to shareholders as per the Board resolution.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Marketcity Resource Private Limited
CIN: U55100MH2006PTC159544

Arun Sethi
Director
DIN. 10045816

Place: Mumbai
Date: 14th May 2024

P8 n, S

Prashant Khandelwal
Director
DIN. 08067106

Place: Mumbai
Date: 14th May 2024




MARKET CITY RESORUCES PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN No. U55100MH2006PTC159544)
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

1. Corporate Information:

Market City Resources Private Limited (“The Company”) is a limited company domiciled in
India and is incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India..
The registered office of the company is located at 2nd floor, R.R. Hosiery Building, off Dr.
E Moses Road, Mahalaxmi, Mumbai (W), Mumbai - 400011.

The Company is mainly engaged in Business Support Services. The principle place of
business is located at 2nd floor, R.R. Hosiery Building, off Dr. E Moses Road, Mahalaxmi,
Mumbai (W), Mumbai - 400011.

For Company’s principal shareholders, refer note no.15.

These financial statements were approved and adopted by board of directors of the
Company in their meeting dated 14 May 2024

2. Basis of Preparation and Presentation:
The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with and in compliance, in all
material aspects, with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133
of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended and other
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”).

The material accounting policies used in preparing these financial statements are same as
used in preparation of annual financial statement ended on 31 March 2023.

New and amended standards adopted by the Company

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) had vide notification dated 31 March 2023
notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 which amended
certain accounting standards (see below), and are effective 01 April 2023.
¢ Disclosure of accounting policies - amendment to Ind AS 1.
¢ Disclosure of accounting estimates - amendment to Ind AS 8.
e Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising from a single transaction -
amendment to Ind AS 12.

The other amendments to Ind AS notified by these rules are primarily in the nature of
clarifications.

These amendments did not have any material impact on the amounts recognized in
prior period and are not expected to significantly affect the current or further periods.
- Specifically, no changes would be necessary as consequences of amendments made to
""Ind AS 12 as the Company's accounting policy already complies with now mandatory
treatment.




MARKET CITY RESORUCES PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN No. U55100MH2006PTC159544)
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

3. A Material Accounting Policies:

a)  Basis of measurement:

The Financial Statements have been prepared on historical cost basis, except the
following:

e Certain financial assets and liabilities that is measured at fair value.

e Defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value less present value
of defined obligations.

e Share Based Payments Measured at Fair Value.

b) Use of Estimates:

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make
estimates, judgements and assumptions that affect the reported balances of assets
and liabilities, disclosure of contingent liabilities as on the date of financial
statements and reported amounts of income and expenses during the period.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that
require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected
in future periods.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the reporting date that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year are described in Notes No. 4. The Company based its assumptions and estimates
on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing
circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change
due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the
Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

c) Property, Plant and Equipment:

Capital work in progress, and all other items of property, plant and equipment are
stated at historical cost net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated

impairment losses, if any.

Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of
the items. Such cost includes the costs for long-term construction projects if the
recognition criteria are met.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a
separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a
separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are




MARKET CITY RESORUCES PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN No. U55100MH2006PTC159544)
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

(d)

charged to statement of profit and loss during the reporting period in which they are
incurred.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Depreciation is calculated using the Written down Value method to allocate their
cost, net of their residual values, over their estimated useful lives as specified by
Schedule Il to the Companies Act; 2013. The residual values are not more than 5% of
the original cost of the asset. The assets’ residual values and useful lives and method
of depreciation are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

Estimated useful lives of the assets are as follows:

Particulars Estimated useful life (in years)
Plant and Equipment 5-15

Furniture and Fixtures 10

Vehicles 8

Office Equipment 5

Leasehold Improvement As per Lease Term

Computer & Networking 3

Trade Receivables

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes
in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs

at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

The Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on its
trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default
rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-
looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are
updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the
Company determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit
risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month
ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased
significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the
instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognise impairment loss
allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events
over the expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the




MARKET CITY RESORUCES PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN No. U55100MH2006PTC159544)
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after
the reporting date.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines
financial instruments on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the
objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in
credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

Financial Liabilities and equity instruments:

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of

an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

i) Initial recognition and measurement:

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of
borrowings, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, security deposits
for lease rentals and borrowings including bank overdrafts.

(i1) Subsequent measurement:

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described
below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial (iabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held
for trading or has designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or
loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the
purpose of repurchasing in the near term.

Gains or losses arising on remeasurement of on liabilities held for trading are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or
loss are designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria
in Ind AS 109, ‘Financial Instruments’ are satisfied.




MARKET CITY RESORUCES PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN No. U55100MH2006PTC159544)
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

(€)

Trade and other payables:

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company
prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid. Trade and other payables are
presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the

reporting period.
Leases

At the inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is or
contains, a lease. A contract is or contains a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange of consideration.
To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an asset the
Company assesses whether:

- The contract involves the use of an identified asset - this may be specified
explicitly or implicitly and should be physically distinct or represent substantially all
of the capability of a physical distinct asset. If the supplier has a substantive
substitution right, then the asset is not identified.

- The Company has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits
from use of the asset throughout the period of use; and

- The Company has the right to direct the use of the asset. The Company has this
right when it has the decision making rights that are most relevant to changing how
and for what purpose the asset is used.

As a Lessee - Right of use Asset

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease
commencement date. At the commencement date, a lessee shall measure the right-
of-use asset at cost which comprises initial measurement of the lease liability, any
lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less any lease incentives
received, any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee; and an estimate of costs to
be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying asset, restoring
the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying asset to the condition
required by the terms and conditions of the lease.

As a Lessee - Lease Liability

At the commencement date, a lessee shall measure the lease liability at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date. The lease payments shall




MARKET CITY RESORUCES PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN No. U55100MH2006PTC159544)
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

f)

g)

be discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily
determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the lessee shall use the
lessee’s incremental borrowing rate.

Revenue Recognition:

The company’ revenue from contracts with customers is mainly from Business
Support Services which includes shared services and specialised services.

Revenue is recognized on satisfaction of performance obligation upon transfer of
control of promised services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration the Company expects to receive in exchange for those services,
excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties (for example taxes and duties
collected on behalf of the government). Consideration is generally due upon
satisfaction of performance obligations and a receivable is recognized when it
becomes unconditional. Generally, the credit period varies between 0-30 days from
the delivery of services.

Employees benefits:

Post-employment benefits

a. Defined Contribution Plan

The defined contribution plan is post-employment benefit plan under which the
Company contributes fixed contribution to a government administered fund and will
have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contribution. The Company’s
defined contribution plan comprises of Provident Fund and Labour Welfare Fund. The
Company’s contribution to defined contribution plans is recognized as an expense in
the period in which the employee renders the related services.

b. Defined benefit plan

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and
are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount
expected to be paid, if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to
pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee, and the amount
of obligation can be estimated reliably.

The Company has a defined benefit plan comprising of gratuity. Company’s obligation
towards gratuity liability is funded and is managed by Life Insurance Corporation of
India (LIC). The present value of the defined benefit obligations is determined based
on actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method. The rate used to
discount defined benefit obligation is determined by reference to market yields at the
Balance Sheet date on Indian Government Bonds for the estimated term of obligations.




MARKET CITY RESORUCES PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN No. U55100MH2006PTC159544)
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

h)

Re-measurements comprising of (a) actuarial gains and losses, (b) the effect of the
asset ceiling (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit
liability) and (c) the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest
on the net defined benefit liability) are recognized immediately in the balance sheet
with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through other comprehensive
income in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to the
profit or loss in subsequent periods.

The expected return on plan assets is the Company’s expectation of average long-
term rate of return on the investment of the fund over the entire life of the related
obligation. Plan assets are measured at fair value as at the Balance Sheet date.

The interest cost on defined benefit obligation and expected return on plan assets is
recognised under “Employee Benefits Expense”.

Gains or losses on the curtailment or settlement of defined benefit plan are recognised
when the curtailment or settlement occurs.

Service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and

losses on
curtailments and settlements) is included in profit or loss in the line item Employee

benefits expense.

Provisions and contingencies:

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. If the effect of the time value
of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future
cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the liability. Unwinding of the discount is recognized
in the Statement of Profit and Loss as a finance cost. Provisions are reviewed at each
balance sheet date and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Provisions
are not recognized for future operating losses.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past
events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate
of the amount cannot be made. Information on contingent liability is disclosed in the
notes to the financial statements. Contingent assets are not recognized. However,
when the realization is virtually certain, then the related asset is no longer a
contingent asset, but it is recognized as an asset.




MARKET CITY RESORUCES PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN No. U55100MH2006PTC159544)
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

i)

Income Taxes:

Income tax expense consists of current and deferred tax.

Current Income Tax:

Current Income Tax liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be paid to the
taxation authorities using the tax rates and tax laws that are enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations
are subject to interpretation and creates provisions where appropriate.

Deferred Tax:

Deferred Tax is provided; using the liability method, on temporary differences between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial
statements. Deferred Income Tax is determined using the tax rates and tax laws that
are enacted or subsequently enacted at the end of the reporting period.

Deferred Tax liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused
tax credits and unused tax losses only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will
be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax balances
relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax asset and liabilities are offset where
the company has a legally enforceable right and intends either to settle on net basis,
or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in the statement of profit & loss, except to the
extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly

in equity, respectively.

Deferred tax assets include Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the
tax laws in India, to the extent it would be available for set off against future current
income tax liability. Accordingly, MAT is recognised as deferred tax asset in the balance
sheet when the asset can be measured reliably and it is probable that the future
economic benefit associated with the asset will be realised.




MARKET CITY RESORUCES PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN No. U55100MH2006PTC159544)
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

B) Other Accounting Policies:
a) Functional and presentation of currency:

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is the Company’s
functional currency, and all amounts are rounded to the nearest rupees in Lakhs,
unless otherwise stated.

b) Measurement of fair values:

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require measurement
of fair values, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the
inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows.

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets and
liabilities.

- Level 2: inputs other than quotes prices included in Level 1 that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from
prices).

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market
data (unobservable inputs).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable
market data as far as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset
or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value
measurement is categorised in its entirely in the same level of the fair value hierarchy
as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the
end of the reporting period during which the change has occurred.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included
in the following notes:
- Refer Note 32 - financial instruments

c) Property, Plant and Equipment:
De-recognition
An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if

% asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.
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MARKET CITY RESORUCES PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN No. U55100MH2006PTC159544)
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

d)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Gain and loss on disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined by comparing the sales proceeds with the carrying amount. These are
recognised in profit or loss.

Intangible assets:

Identifiable intangible assets are recognised when the Company controls the asset and,
it is probable that future economic benefits attributed to the asset will flow to the
Company and the cost of the asset can be reliably measured.

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, such intangible assets are
carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation methods and periods

Estimated useful lives of Intangible assets are considered as 5 years. Intangible assets
are amortised over its useful life using the straight-line method. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern
of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to
modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes
in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite
lives is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Software is amortised over useful life of 5 years.
Derecognition:

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits
are expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an
intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets:

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an
asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for
an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or Cash Generating Unit’s (CGU) fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. It is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or a groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU
exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down
to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
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f)

g)

h)

In assessing the value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value
less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account, if no such
transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset or
a CGU is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset or CGU in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand and at banks, deposits held at call
with banks and other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting
provided to the chief operating decision maker.

The board of directors (“chief operating decision maker” as defined under Ind AS 108)
assesses the financial performance and position of the Company and makes strategic

decisions.
Foreign currency transactions:

The transactions denominated in currencies other than the Company’s functional
currency (foreign currencies) are translated at the exchange rate prevailing on the
date of transaction. Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies at the
reporting date are translated into functional currency using the exchange rate
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are to be carried at historical cost
are recorded using exchange rate prevailing on the date of transaction. Non- monetary
items that are carried at fair value, that are denominated in foreign currencies, are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined.
Any income or expenses on account of exchange difference either on settlement or on
translation is recognised as profit or loss.

Financial Instrument:
Financial Assets
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity

and a financial liability or equity instruments of another entity. Classifications of
financial instruments are in accordance with the substance of the contractual
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arrangement and as per the definitions of financial assets, financial liability and an
equity instruments.

Financial Assets

i) Initial recognition and measurement:

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset (other than financial
asset at fair value through profit or loss) at its fair value plus or minus, transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit and loss are
expensed in the statement of profit & loss.

Subsequent measurement:

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four
categories:

e Debt instrument at amortised cost:

Assets that are held within a business model for collection of contractual cash flows
where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are
measured at amortised cost. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently
measured at amortised cost and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in
profit or loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate method.

o Debt instrument at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI):

Assets that are held within a business model for collection of contractual cash flows
and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FTVOCI).

Interest income is recognised in profit or loss for FVTOCI debt instruments. For the
purposes of recognising foreign exchange gains and losses, FVTOCI debt instruments
are treated as financial assets measured at amortised cost. Thus, the exchange
differences on the amortised cost are recognised in profit or loss and other changes
in the fair value of FVTOCI financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of 'Reserve for debt instruments through
other comprehensive income’. When the investment is disposed of, the cumulative
gain or loss previously accumulated in this reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.

e Debt instrument at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL):

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVTOCI are
measured at FVTPL. In addition, debt instruments that meet the amortised
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criteria or the FVTOCI criteria but are designated as at FVTPL are measured at FVTPL.
Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss.
The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any dividend or interest
earned on the financial asset and is included in the ‘Other income’ line item.

Equity instruments:

On initial recognition, the Company can make an irrevocable election (on an
instrument-by-instrument basis) to present the subsequent changes in fair value in
other comprehensive income pertaining to investments in equity instruments. This
election is not permitted if the equity investment is held for trading. These elected
investments are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently,
they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair
value recognised in other compr ehensive income and accumulated in the ‘Reserve
for equity instruments through other comprehensive income’. The cumulative gain or
loss is not reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the investments. As at the
reporting date, the Company has not elected to measure its equity instruments at
FVTOCI.

Investments in equity instruments, other than Investments in the nature of equity in
subsidiaries, are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Company irrevocably elects on
initial recognition to present subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive
income as stated above.

ii)  De-recognition:

A financial asset is primarily derecognised i.e., removed from Company’s financial
statement when:

e The rights to receive cash flows from asset have expired or

o The Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from the asset or has
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under ‘pass- through’ arrangement and either;

a) The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
assets,

b) The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or
has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has
retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor
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retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control
of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent
of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured
on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset
is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the company could be required to repay.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have
otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset.

jif) Foreign exchange gains and losses:

The fair value of financial assets denominated in a foreign currency is determined in
that foreign currency and translated at the spot rate at the end of each reporting

period.

For foreign currency denominated financial assets measured at amortised cost and
FVTPL, the exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss except for those which
are designated as hedging instruments in a hedging relationship.

For the purposes of recognising foreign exchange gains and losses, FVTOC| debt
instruments are treated as financial assets measured at amortised cost. Thus, the
exchange differences on the amortised cost are recognised in profit or loss and other
changes in the fair value of FVTOCI financial assets are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Financial Liabilities and equity instruments:

De - recognition:

A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is
discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is
replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and
the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in profit or loss.
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)

k)

Offsetting of Financial Instruments:

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is
reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis,
to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Classification of assets and liabilities as current and non - current:

The Company presents assets and liabilities in Balance Sheet based on current/non-
current classification.

An asset is classified as current when it is:

a) Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating
cycle,

b) Held primarily for the purpose of trading,

c) Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

d) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle
a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is classified as current when:

a) Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle,

b) It is held primarily for the purpose of trading,

c) It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

d) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and
their realisation in cash or cash equivalents. Based on the nature of activities of the
Company and the normal time between acquisition of assets and their realisation in
cash or cash equivalents, the Company has determined its operating cycle as twelve
months for the purpose of classifications of its assets and liabilities as current and

non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

Other Income:

interest income

Interest income from financial assets is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Company. Such interest income is recognised using
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(m)

0)

effective interest rate method. The effective interest rate is the rate that discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of financial assets to the
carrying amount of financial assets.

Interest on income tax refund is recognised on receipt of refund order.

Dividends

Dividends are recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive payment is
established.

Contract asset

A contract asset (Trade Receivable) is the right to consideration in exchange for goods
or services transferred to the customer. If the Company performs part of its obligation
by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration
or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognized for the earned consideration
when that right is conditional on the Company’s future performance.

Contract liability

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for
which the Company has received consideration from the customer. If a customer pays
consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a
contract liability is recognized when the payment is received. Contract liabilities are
recognized as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

Employees benefits:

i)  Short-term Employee Benefits:

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and
are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount
expected to be paid, if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to
pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee, and the amount
of obligation can be estimated reliably.

All employees’ benefits payable wholly within 12 months of rendering services are
classified as Short Term obligations. Benefits such as salaries, wages, short term
compensated absences, performance incentives, expected cost of bonus and ex-gratia
are recognised during the period in which the employees renders related services at
the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that
service.
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Q)

i) Share-based payment transactions

Share-based compensation benefits are provided to employees via Employee
Stock Option Plan to the subsidiary companies of The Phoenix Mills Limited, the
Parent.

The grant date fair value of options granted under the Employee Option Plan is
recognised as an employee benefits expense with a corresponding increase in
equity, on a straight-line basis, over the vesting period, based on the Company’s
estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest. At the end of each
period, the company revises its estimates of the number of options that are
expected to vest based on the non-market vesting and service conditions. It
recognises the impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in the
Statement of profit and loss, with a corresponding adjustment to other equity.

iii) Other long-term benefits

The Company has other long-term benefits in the form of compensated absences. The
present value of the other long-term employee benefits is determined based on
actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method. The rate used to discount
defined benefit obligation is determined by reference to market yields at the Balance
Sheet date on Indian Government Bonds for the estimated term of obligations.

Actuarial gains or losses arising on account of experience adjustment and the effect
of changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised as profit or loss.

Gains or losses on the curtailment or settlement of other long-term benefits are
recognised when the curtailment or settlement occurs.

Earnings per share:

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss (after tax) for
the year attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss (after tax)
for the year attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the year, both adjusted for the effects dilutive
potential equity shares.
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4.

()

(b)

Critical accounting estimates, assumptions and judgements:

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make estimates,
judgements and assumptions that affect the reported balances of assets and liabilities,
disclosure of contingent liabilities as on the date of financial statements and reported
amounts of income and expenses during the period. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment
to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the reporting date have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. The
Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the
financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about
future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances
arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the
assumptions when they occur.

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made
the following estimates and judgements, which have significant effect on the amounts
recognized in the financial statement: -

Depreciation and useful lives of Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated over the estimated useful lives of the
assets, after taking into account their estimated residual value. Management reviews
the estimated useful lives and residual values of the assets annually in order to
determine the amount of depreciation to be recorded during any reporting period. The
useful lives and residual values are based on the Company’s historical experience with
similar assets and take into account anticipated technological changes. The
depreciation for future periods is adjusted if there are significant changes from previous
estimates.

Recoverability of trade receivables

Judgments are required in assessing the recoverability of overdue trade receivables and
determining whether a provision against those receivables is required. The Company
uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on its trade receivables.
The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected
life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every
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reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the
forward-looking estimates are analyzed.

(c) Defined Benefit plan

The cost of the defined benefit plan and other post-employment benefits and the
present value of such obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial
valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual
developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate,
future salary increases, mortality rates and attrition rate. Due to the complexities
involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly
sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each
reporting date.

(e) Provisions:

Provisions are recognized in the period when it becomes probable that there will be a
future outflow of funds resulting from past operations or events and the amount of cash
outflow can be reliably estimated. The timing of recognition and quantification of
provisions require the application of judgement to existing facts and circumstances,
which can be subject to change. Since the cash outflows can take place many years in
the future, the carrying amounts of provisions are reviewed regularly and adjusted to
take account of changing facts and circumstances.

Impairment of financial assets:

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of
default and expected cash loss rates. The Company uses judgement in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on Company’s
past history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end
of each reporting period.

Estimates and judgements are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the
Company and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. They are
continually evaluated.
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(g) Fair Value measurement:

When the fair values of financials assets and financial liabilities recorded in the Balance
Sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is
measured using valuation techniques, including the discounted cash flow model, which
involve various judgements and assumptions.

(h) Tax expense and related contingencies:

The Company’s tax jurisdiction is India. Significant judgements are involved in
determining the provision for income taxes, including amount expected to be
paid/recovered for uncertain tax positions.. Further, significant judgement is exercised
to ascertain amount of deferred tax asset (DTA) that could be recognized based on the
probability that future taxable profits will be available against which DTA can be utilized
and amount of temporary difference in which DTA cannot be recognized on want of
probable taxable profits.
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Marketcity Resource Private Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024

{Amount in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

6A Right of Use Assets
Cost
Balance as at April 1, 2022
Additions
Disposals
Balance as at March 31, 2023
Additions / Adjustments
Disposals
Balance as at March 31, 2024

Accumulated depreciation and impairment
Balance as at April 1, 2022
Depreciation

Disposals

Balance upto March 31, 2023
Depreciation

Disposals / Adjustments
Balance upto March 31, 2024
Net Carrying amounts
Balance as at March 31, 2023
Balance as at March 31, 2024

6A Particulars

Lease liability

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

2,712.81 -

2,712.81 -

2,666.83 -

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Non Current Current Non Current  Current
2,104.71 627.26 - -
2,104.71 627.26 - -
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Marketcity Resource Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024
(Amount in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

1

11.01

Total

Trade receivable Current
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
(a) Considered Good - Unsecured 4,932.02 6,489.21
4,932.02 6,489.21
Less: Provision for expected credit loss - =
4,932.02 6,489.21
Ageing of Trade Receivables
31 March 2024 | ] _
Qutstanding for following periods from due date of Payment
Particulars Less than 6 6 months 1-2 years 2-3 More than Total
months - 1 year years years 3 years
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good 2,317.17 115.27 2,432.44
(if) Undisputed Trade Receivables -which have significant increase in -
credit risk
(iii} Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired =
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables-considered good -
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables - which have significant increase in -
credit risk
{vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired -
Unbilled trade receivable 2,499.58
Gross Trade Receivable 4,932.02
Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful debts (Disputed + Undisputed)
Total 4,932.02
31 March 2023 Outstanding for following periods from due date of Payment
Particulars Less than 6 6 months 1-2 years 2-3 More than Total
months -1year years years 3J years
(i} Undisputed Trade receivables - considered eood 4,003.96 2.56 4,006.52
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables -which have significant increase in -
credit risk
{iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired -
(iv} Disputed Trade Receivables-considered good -
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables - which have significant increase in
credit risk
{vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired -
Unbilled trade receivable 2,482.69
Gross Trade Recelvable 6.489.21
Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful debts (Disputed + Undisputed)
6,489.21




Marketcity Resource Private Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024

(Amount in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

12

13

14

Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks:
in current accounts
Deposits with maturity of less than 3 months
Cash on hand

Deferred Tax Assets (Net)

Movement in Deferred Tax is as follows:

Opening Balance

Less/ (Add) : Tax charge / (credit) recognised in statement of profit and loss
Less/ (Add) : Tax charge / {credit) recognised in other comprehensive income
Closing Balance

Deferred Tax Assets/{Liability) in relations to
Property,plant and Equipments

Expenses claimed for tax purpose on payment basis
Remeasurment Gain on Mutual Fund

Income tax assets
Advance income tax (net of provisions)

Movement in Provision:

At beginning of the year

Less: Charge for the year

Add: Tax paid during the year (net of refund received)
At the end of the year

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

853.58 689.78
a 100.00
0.13 0.40
853.71 790.18

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

286.49 180.65
(7.08) (91.33)
(6.29) 14.52

299.86 286.49
58.80 44.87

229.92 257.16
11.14 {15.55}
299.87 286.49

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

494.06 559.25
294.06 559.25
559.25 (18.85)
1,759.8 1,757.9
(1,825.01) 2,336.04
494.06 559.25




Marketcity Resource Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024
(Amount in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

15 Share capital

15.01 Equity shares

Authorized
10,000 ( PY : 10,000 ) Equity Shares of ¥ 10/- each

ssued, subscribed and paid u)
10,000 ( PY : 10,000 ) Equity Shares of ¥ 10/- each
Total

(i} Reconciliation of equity shares ding at the begi and at the end of the year
Equity Shares
o ding at the beginning of the year

Outstanding at the end of the year

(1) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares including restrictions on the distribution of dividends and the repay

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

1.00 1.00

00 1.0

1.00 1.00

1.00 1.0(

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
of shares A of shares A
10,000 1.00 10,000 1.
10,000 1.00 10,000 1.0t
of capltal.

The Company has only one class of equity shares having face value of INR 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. Equity shareholder are also entitled to dividend as and when proposed t

the Board of Directors and approved by Share hotders in Annual General Meeting. In the event of liquidation of the company, the holder of Equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, afte

distribution of all preferential amounts which shall be in proportion to the number of shares held by the shareholders.
(iii) Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Name of the shareholder Number of % of holding Number of % of holding in the
shares in the class shares class
Equity shares of I aca value] each fully paid
The Phoenix Mills Limited 10,000 100.00% 10,000 100.00%

As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and benefici:

ownerships of shares.

(iv) Details of Shares held by Promoters at the end of the year

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

No. of Shares % of total % Change No. of Shares % of total shares % Change during
Promoter name shares during the the year
year
Equity shares of INR [Face value] each fully paid
The Phoenix Mills Limited 10,000 100.00% - 10,000 100.00% -

16  Other equity

Employee Stock options outstanding account
Surplus/ (deficit) in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Other Comprehensive Income

Remeasurement of net defined benefit plans

account

16.01 Employee Stock opti di
Balance at the beginning of the year
Add: Recognition of shared based payments
Closing balance

) to the Company's Employ

Stock Option Reserve in respect of ESOP issued by The Phoenix Mills Ltd (Holding Comp

16.02 Retained Earnings:-

Surplus/(deficit) in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Opening balance

Less : Utilised for dividend payout*

Opening balance

Add: Net profit for the current year

Closing balance

* During the year company has paid dividend for the FY 2023-24
16.03 ement of net defined benefit plans
Opening balance
-Re-measurement losses on defined benefit plans (net of tax)
Closing balance

17 Provislons

Provision for employee benefits (Refer note 30)
Provision for gratuity
Provision for compensated absences

Total Provisions

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

1,349.16 1,203.11
7,146.87 7,835.3(
(185.57) (166.8¢
8,310.46 8,871.6:
1,203.18 971.1¢
145.98 231.9¢
1,349.16 1,203.11
7,835.30 2,735.7
(6,000.00) .
1,835.31 2,735.7¢
5,311.57 5,099.5,
7,146.87 7,835.3(

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

—

.“-“'\-\_l
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= &
Jrtered KA

(166.86} (123.7(
(18.71) (43.1¢
(185.57) (166.8¢
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Neon Current Current Non Current Current
320.17 77.64 348.70 2.
378.07 112.64 378.43 135.2(
698.24 190.28 727.13 137.7(
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Marketcity Resource Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024
{Amount in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

23 Employee benefits expense
Salaries, wages, bonus and other allowances
Contribution to Provident Fund and other funds
Share based payments to employees
Staff welfare expenses
Total employee benefits expense

24  Finance costs
Interest on Lease Liabilities
Total finance costs

25 Depreciation and amortization expense
Depreciation and amortization of property, plant and equipment & ROU
Amortisation of intangible assets
Total depreciation and amortization expense

26  Other expenses
Electricity Expenses
Rent
Rates and taxes
Repairs and maintenance - Building
Repairs and maintenance - Plant & Machinery
Repairs and maintenance - Others
Travel and conveyance expenses
Water and gas charges
Commission and other transaction charges
Insurance
Printing & Stationery
Telephone, internet and communication charges
Legal and professional charges
Advertisement, Promotion and Marketing Expenses
CSR expenditure (refer note no 48)#
Manpower and Consumables Cost
Housekeeping Expenses
Audit fees*
Miscellaneous expenses
General Expenses
Postage & Courier

Total other expenses

*Note : The following is the break-up of Auditors remuneration (exclusive of GST)
26.01 As auditor:

Statutory audit

Tax audit
Total

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
7,101.01 5,985.82
184.20 146.2¢
145.98 231.9¢
150.22 64.72
7,581.40 6,428.78
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
19.15 -
19.15 -
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
250.23 209.7¢
7.95 9.1¢
258.18 218.94
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
28.40 25.13
303.03 333.9z
12.09 -
3.73 -
14.50 -
38.98 165.0z
308.89 261.37
1.60 -
0.47 -
33.91 29.5¢
23.17 17.1¢
60.82 285.2¢
1,940.22 1,019.4¢
34.57
58.44 16.13
4.33 -
83.70 -
5.75 5.5
145.14 120.9C
= 237.82
- 13.632
3,101.75 2,530.8¢
3,101.75 2,530.89
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
5.25 5.0C
0.50 0.5C
5.75 5.50




Marketcity Resource Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024
{Amount in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

27 Taxation 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

27.01 Income tax expense charged to the statement of profit or loss

- Current tax taxes 1,759.82 1,757.94
- Income Tax Earlier Years - .
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss 1,759.82 1,757.94

Deferred tax expense charged to the statement of profit or loss

-In respect of Current Year ( Including Minimum Alternate Tax) (7.08) {91.33)
-In respect of Previous Year ( Including Minimum Alternate Tax)
Deferred tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss (7.08) (91.33)
Income tax expense charged to OCI 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Deferred tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to Profit and loss (6.29) -
Income tax charged to OCI (6.29) -
27.02 Reconciliation of tax charge 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Profit before tax 7,064.31 6,766.13
Tax Rate 25.17% 25.17%
Income tax expense at tax rates applicable 1,777.95 1,702.90
Tax effects of items that are not deductible in determining taxable income:
Additional allowances for Profit and Gains from Business and Profession (196.26) (66.86)
Expenses disallowed in Income tax 178.14 11.8
Income tax expense recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss 1,759.83 1,757.94
Effective Tax Rate 24.91% 25.98%

27.03 Deferred Tax Recognised in statement of profit and Loss relates to the following:

Difference between books & tax depreciation (13.93) (27.46)
Expenses allowable on payment basis (19.84) (93.48)
Tax on Net gain arising on Financial assets measures at FVTPL 26.69 15.09
Deferred Tax Asset (7.08) {105.85)

27.04 Reconciliation of deferred tax ( liabilites )/assets :

Opening balance 286.50 180.65
Tax expenses / (income) during the year (7.08) (91.33)
Tax on Other Comprehensive Income ! 6.29 14.52

Closing balance 299.87 286.50




Marketcity Resource Private Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 3 1st March 2024

(Amount in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

28 Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic earnings /(loss) per share amounts are calculated by dividing the profit/loss for the year attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.
Diluted earnings /(loss) per share amounts are calcutated by dividing the profit/loss attributable to equity holders (after adjusting for interest on the convertible preference shares) by the weighted average number of equity shares

outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be fssued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into equity shares.
The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

Profit attributable to equity holders for basic EPS

Profit attributable to equity holders adjusted for the effect of dilution

Weighted average number of eqjuity shares for basic EPS
‘Weighted average number of equity shares adjusted for the effect of dilution

28.01 EPS
Basic Earnlng Per Share (%)
Diluted Earning Per Share (T}
Face Value in (%)

29 Segment reporting:

The Company is in the business of setting-up and opeartion of Mall. Considering the nature of the company's business and operations, there are no separate reportable

q

30 Employee benefits

30.01  Contribution to Defined Contribution Plan

Employer's Contribution towards Provident Fund (PF) and Pension Fund

Employer’s Contribution towards Employee Welfare

The Company makes contributfons towards provident fund and pensfon fund for qualifying employees to the Regional Provident Fund Commissioner

30.02 Defined benefit plans

of Indian A il (IND AS)108 -
Revenue from Two Customers of the company repesents Rs. 7106.65 Lakhs (Which s more than 10% of the company’s tatal revenue.)

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
5,311.57 5,099.52
5,311.57 5,099.52
10,000 10,000
10,000 10,000
53,115.69 50,995.22
53,115.69 50,995.22
10.00 10.00
and/or geograp ) in e with the
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
97.60 74.47
0.04 0.03
97.72 74.50

The company provides gratuity benefit to it's employees which is a defined benefit plan. The present value of obtigatlon is determined based on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each period of

service as giving rise Lo additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final

i) Actuarial assumptions
Discount Rate
Salary Growth Rate

Withdrawal Rates

Number of Employees

Total Monthly Salary (Rs.)

Average Monthly Salary (Rs.)
Average Age (Years)

Average Past Service {Years)
Average Future Service (Years)
Weighted Average Duration (Years}

Sample Rates per annum of indlan Assured Lives Mortality

Age (In years)

i} Assets and Liabilities

Deflned Benefit Obligation
Fair Value Of Plan Assets
Net Liability(Asset)

i) Bifurcation Of Liability

Current Liabllity
Non-Current Uability
Net Liability(Asset)

i) Income/Expenses Recognized during the period
Employee Benefit Expense
Other Comprehensive Income

iv) Funded status of the plan

Present value of unfunded abligations
Present value of funded obligations
Fair value of plan assets

Net Defined Benefit Liability/(Assets)

v) Profit and loss account for the period
Service cost:

Current service cost
Net interest cost

31 March 2024

7.20% p.a,

7.00% p.a.

Age 25 & Below : 10% p.a.
25t035:10% p.a.
35t045:10% p.a.
45t055:10% p.a.

S5 & above : 10 % p.a.

is recognised in the same manner as gratuity

31 March 2023
7.30% p.a.
7.00% p.a.
Age 25 & Below : 10% p.a.
251035:10% p.a.
35t045:10% p.a.
45t055:10% p.a.
55 & above : 10% p.a.

Total included in ‘Employee Benefit Exp I

vii) Other Comprehenstve Income for the period
- of aetuiarlal gain) ileati

240 218
211.23 178.41
0.88 0.82
37.50 37.16
3.49 3.4
22.50 22.84
7.00 9.33
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
0.09% 0.09%
0.10% 0.10%
0.17% 0.17%
0.44% 0.44%
1.12% 1.92%
Employee’s gratulty fund
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
398.88 355.25
{1.03) (4.05)
397.85 351.20
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
77.64 2.50
320.21 348.70
397.85 351.20
31 March 2024 31 Mareh 2023
82.68 61.08
26.97 57.70
109.65 118.78
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
398.88 355.25
(1.03) (4.05)
397.85 351.20
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
59.34 36.46
23.34 24.63
8268 61.08

31 March 2024

31 March 2023




viii)

viii)

ix)

31

32

Due to Change In financlal assumptions 2,26 1.93

Due to experlence adjustments 2.75 55.75
Return on plan assets excluding amounts Included in interest income 1.96 0.02
d in Other Comp I )/ 26.97 57.70

Reconciltation of defined benefit obligation

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Opening Defined Benefit Gbligation 355,25 317.70
Current service cost 59.34 36.46
Interest cost 23.59 24.86
Components i inflosses on obligations:
Due to Change in financial assumptions 2.26 1.93
Due to experience adjustments 2.75 55.75
Benefit paid from fund (64.31) (81.44)
Closing Defined Benefit Obligation 398.88 355.25
Reconclliation of plan assets 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Opening value of plan assets 4.03
Interest Income 0.25 0.23
Return on plan assets excluding amounts included in interestincome -1.96 -0.02
Contributions by Employer 63.00 8).43
Benefits paid -64.31 -81.44
Closing value of plan assets 1.03 4.05
Sensitivity to kay assumptions 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Dizcount rate Sonsithvity
Increase by 1.0% 377.40 336.82
(% change) -5.39% -5.19%
Decrease by 1.0% 422.90 375.73
(% change) 6.02% 5.77%
Salary growt Sensitiv
Increase by 1.0% 410.18 364.98
{% change) 2.83% 2.74%
Decrease by 1.0% 387.17 345.75
(% change) -2.93% -2.67%
Withdrawal rate {W.R.) Sensitivity
W.R. x 101% 399.30 359.28
(% change) 0.11% 1.13%
W.R. x 99% 398.44 350.65
(% change) -0.11% -1.29%

These gratuity plan typically expose to the company to actuarial risks such as: fnvestment risk, interest risk, longevity risk and salary risk.

Investment risk:

The present vatue of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate which is determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds. For other defined benefit plans, the
discount rate is determined by reference to market yield at the end of reporting period on high quality corporate bonds when there Is a deep market for such bonds, {f the return on plan asset is below this rate, It will create a plan deficit.

Interest risk:

A decrease in the bord interest rate will increase the plan liability; however, this will be partially offset by an increase in the return on the plan debt investments.

Longevity risk:

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability fs calculated by reference to the best estimate of mortality of plan participants both during and after their employment. An increase fn the life expectancy of the plan particlpants will
increase the plan’s Uability,

Salary risk:

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan participants. As such, an increase fn salary of plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.

Other Long Term benefit plan - Compensated absencaes

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Present value of unfunded obligations 450.71 513.63
Expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss 68.13 240.76
Discount rate {per annum} 7.20% 7.30%
Salary escalation rate (per annum} 7.00% 7.00%
Fair values of financial assets and financlal Habilities
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Carrying Amount Fair Value Carrying Amatmt Fair Valie
Financlal assets
Financlal assets valued at amortized cost
Trade receivable 4,932.02 4,932.02 6,469.21 6,489.21
Cash and Cash Equivatents 853.71 853.71 790.18 790.18
Other financtal assets 47.98 47.98 40.54 40.54
Financlal assets valued at FYTOCI
Investments
- in Equity shares 2,500.01 2,500.01 - -
Financlal assets valued at FVTPL
Investments
= in Mutual Fund 1,781.69 1,781.69 3,247.08 3,247.08
Total financtal assets 10,115:41 10,115.41 10,567.01 10,567.01
Financial ltabilities
Financlal Llabilities valued at amortized cost
Trade payables and others 881.95 881.95 561.28 563.28
Lease liabllity 2,731.98 2,731.98 - L
Qther financiat tabilities 159.61 159.61 140.34 140.34
Total financlal llabilities 3,773.53 3,773.53 703.62 703.62

Note : The Financial Assets above do not Include investments in assoclates which are carried at cost n terms of the option available in Ind AS 27 “Separate Financlal Statements™,

Fair valuation techniques:

The Company maintains policles and procedures to value financlal assets or financial liabilities using the best and most relevant data available.

The follawing methods and assumptions were used to estmate the falr values

1. Fair value of Fnancal Assets & Financial Liability (except Long term Borrowlngs) are carried at amortised cost and is not materially different from it’s carrying cost-
2. Fair value of Long term Borrowings is calculated based on discounted cash flow.

3. Fair Value of Current Investmment In mutual Funds is Calculated Based on NAY declared by the fund.

Fair value hlerarchy

The following table provides the fair value hlerarchy of C 's asset and liabilities, grouped into Level 1 to Level 3 as described below:

sLevel 1: Quoted prices / published NAY (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or Liabilitles. It includes fair value of financial instruments traded in atmfyugygg-_apd are based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date.
.

—
A ECAA
~
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Level 2: Inputs ather than quated prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or Lability, either directly (that &7 a5 prices) or indirectly (that Is, derived from prices). It includes fair value of the financisl imstruments that
are not traded fn an active market 1s determined by using valuation technlques. These valuation ise the use of ot 1o market data whers it {s available and rely as little as possible on the company specific estimates. If
all significant {nputs required to fair value an instrument are observable then Instrument is ncluded In level 2

sLevet 3 - Inputs for the asset or lfabillty that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable Inputs), If one or more of the significant fnputs Is not based on observable market data, the Instrument is included in tevel 3.

The following table presents fair value hierarchy of assets and llabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis:

As at 31 March 2024 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financlal assets

Investments

- in Equity shares - - 2,500.01 2,500.01

- in Mutual Fund - 1,781.69 - 1,781.69
- 1,781.69 2,500.01 4,261,770

As at 31 March 2023 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Flnancial assets

Investments

- in Mutual Fund - 3,247.08 = 3,247.08
- 3,247 .08 = 3,247.08

There are no reclassification of financial instruments between level 2 and level 3

The carrying amount of cash and cash equival , trade recelvables, fixed d Its, trade payables, other payables and short-term borrowings are considered to be the same as thelr fair values. They are classifled as level 3 fair values {n the

fair value hierarchy due to the inclusion of unobservable inputs including own and counterparty credit risk.

Falr value measurements using significant unobservable Inputs (level 3)
The following table presents the changes in level 3 ftems for the perlods ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023:

Unlisted equity Other Total
securities
As at 1 April 2022 - - -
As at 31 March 2023 = - .
Acquisitions/disposal 2,580.01 - 2,500.01
As at 31 March 2024 7, 50007 - 50001

Financlal risk management objectives and policles
The Company's activities expose It to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk. This note explalns the sources of risks which the entity is exposed to and how it mitigates that risk.

Market risk
Market risk fs the risk that the falr value of future cash flows of a financlal instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: Interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as
equity price risk and commodity risk, Financlal instruments affected by market risk include borrowings and derivative financlal instruments.

{f) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk Is the risk that the falr value or future cash flows of a financial Instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company 1s not exposed to Interest rate risk as the Company does not having any

borrowlings as at the respective reporting dates.

(i) Price risk
The Company is not exposed to the comodity and other price risk.

{iif) Forefgn currency risk
Forelgn currency risk Is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial fnstrument will fluctuate because of changes in forelgn exchange rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in forelgn exchange rates relates
primarily to the Company's operating activities (when revenue or expense is denominated ina different currency fram the Company’s functional currency).

The Company is exposed to very minimum foreign exchange risk.

Credit risk
Credit risk Is the risk of financial loss to the Company that a customer or counter party to a financlal instrument fails to meet its obligations. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating actlvities (primarily trade recefvables)
and from its financing activitles, Including deposits with banks, mutual funds, financfal institutions and other financlal {nstruments.

Trade recelvables and contract assets

The Company extands credit to customers in normal course of business, The Company considers factors such as credit track recard in the market and past dealings for lon of credit to To manage credit risk, the Company
periodically nusesses the financlal rellabillty of the customer, taking into account the financlal cendition, current economic trends, and analysis of historical bad debits and aging of accounts receivables. Outstanding customer recelyables are
regularly  to make &n of rec bility, Recefvables are provided as doubtiul / written off, when there s no reasanable expectation of recavery. Where recelvables have besn provided / writtsn off, the Company
continues regular followup , enigage with the customers, legal options / any other remedies available with the objective of recovering these autstandings.

The Company Is not exposad to concentration of credit risk to-any ane single customer since services are provided to vast specturm. The Company also takes security deposits, advances , post dated cheques etc from its customers, which
mitigate the credit risk to an extent.

Exposure to credit risk
The gross carrying amount of financtal assets, net of impairment losses recognised represents the maxtmum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk as at March 31,2024 and March 31, 2023 s as follows:
As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023

Financlal assets for which loss allowances are measured using 12 months Expected Credit Losses {ECL):
Other Investments 1,781.69 3,247.08
Cash and cash equivalents 853.71 790.18
Other financial assets 47.98 40.54

4,932.02 6,489.21

Trade recelvables

Liquidity risk

Liquldity risk Is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and future cash and collateral obligatiars without incurring unacceptable losses.

The Company’s ahjective ks to at all imes maintain optimum levels of tiquidity to meet its cash and collateral requirements, The Company relles on a mix of borrowings, capltal infusion and excess operating cash flows to meet its needs for
funds. The current borrowings are suffictent to meet its short to medium term needs. i the C /s net liquidity position through rolling forecasts on the basis of expected cash flows,

The Company Is required to maintain ratios (such as debt service coverage ratio and secured coverage ratio) as mentfoned In the loan agreements at specified levels. In the event of failure to meet any of these ratlos these loans become

Particulars As at 31 March 2024
Carrving Amount | On Demand Less than 12 months 1- 5 years >5 years Total
Other Financlal Liabilitles 159.61 125.00 34.61 - - 159.61
Trade and other payables §81.95 - 881.95 - - 881.95
Particulars As at 31 March 2023
Carrying Amount | On Demand Less than 12 months 1- 5 years >5 years Tatal
Other Financlal Liabilltles 140,34 125.00 15.34 - - 140.34
Trade and other payabl 563.28 - 563.28 - - 563.28




Marketcity Resource Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024
(Amount in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

34 Related Party Disclosures
In accordance with the requirements of Ind AS - 24 ‘Related Party Disclosures’, names of the related parties, related party relationship,
transactions and outstanding balances including commitments where control exits and with whom transactions have taken place during
reported periods are:

34.01 Names of related parties and description of relationship as identified and certified by the Company:

Category I: Holding Company

The Phoenix Mills Ltd

Category li: Fellow Subsidliary Company
Vamona Developers Private Limited
Palladium Constructions Private Limited
Island Star Mall Developers Private Limited
Offbeat Developers Private Limited.
Blackwood Developers Private Limtied.

Upal Developers Private Limited.

Pinnacle Real Estate Private Limited

Insight Mall Developers Private Limited
Sparkle One Mall Developers Private Limited
Alyssum Developers Private Limited

Classic Mall Development Co Limited (From 05th May 2022 Onwards)
Gracewaorks Realty & Leisure Priave Limited.
Mindstone Mall Developers Pvt Ltd.

Destiny Retail Mall Developers Private Limited
Bellona Hospitality Services Ltd

Big Apple Real estate Pvt Ltd

Finesse Mall & Commercial Real Estate Pvt Ltd
Enhance Holding Pvt Ltd.

Gangetic Developers Pvt Ltd

Market City Management Pvt Ltd

Mugwort Land Holding Pvt Ltd.

Pallazzio Hotels & Leisures Ltd

Pinnacle Real Estate Pvt Ltd

Plutocrat Commercial Real Estate Private Ltd
Rentcierge Developers Pvt Ltd

Sangam Infrabuild Corporation Ltd

Savana Phoenix Private Limited.

SGH Realty LLP :

Sparkle Two Mall Developers Pvt Ltd.

Thoth Mall & Commercial Real Estate Pvt Ltd
True Value LLP

Butala Land Farms Pvt Ltd

Phoenix Logistics & Industrial Parks Pvt Ltd
Janus Logistics & Industria Parks Pvt Ltd
Phoenix Digital Technologies Private Limited

Category lli: Associates

Classic Housing Projects Private Limited

Columbus Investment Advisory Private Limited

Starboard Hotels Private Limited

Classic Mall Development Company Limited (upto 04-May-2022)

Category IV: Key Management Personnel (KMP)

Designation
KMP of Holding Company (tll March 18, 2024)

Key Person

Atul Ruia

KMP of Holding Company

Arun Sethi

Director{From 27th October 2023)

Gajendra Mewara

KMP of Holding Company

Category V: Enterprises over which Key Managerial Personnel are able to exerclse significant control

R.R. Hosiery Private Limited
R.R. Hosiery (Partnership Firm)
Aakar Charitable trust

Category VI Relatives of Key Managerial Personnel of Holding Company
Gayatri A. Ruia




34.02 Transactions during the year:

Sr No| TRANSACTIONS Category | Category Il Category Il Category IV | CategoryV | Category VI Total
2023-24/2022-23 |2023-24 |2022-23 2023-24 2022-23 2023-212022-2/2023-2/2022-2/2023-2/2022-2/2023-24|2022-23

1 |Shared Services Income & other Specified

services
Alliance Spaces Pvt Ltd 72.92 3.1 72.92 .11
Alyssum Developers Pyt Ltd Drs 3893.26 2013.94 3,893.26|2,013.94
IBellona Hospitality Services Ltd 9.40 3.1 9.40 .11
Big Apple Real Estate Pyt Ltd. 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10
Blackwood Developers Pvt Ltd 114.34 115.68 114.34] 115.68
Butala Land Farms Pvt Ltd 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10
Classic Housing Projects Pvt Ltd 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10
Classic Mall Development Co. Ltd. 413,07 500.87 413.07| 500.87
Columbus Investment Advisory Pvt Ltd 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10
Destiny Retail Mall Developers Private Limited 361.98 258.16 361.98| 258.16
Enhance Holding Pvt Ltd. 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10
Finesse Mall and Commercial Real Estate Pvt Ltd 0.10 0.10
0.10 0.10
Gangetic Developers Pyt Ltd 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10
Gracework Realty & Leisure Pvt Ltd 127.37 355.79 127.37| 355.79
Insight Mall Developers Pvt Ltd. 1026.90 2265.93 1,026.90)2,265.93
Island Star Mall Developers Pvt Ltd 1575.62 1651.02 1,575.62(1,651.02
Janus Logistics and [ndustria Parks Pvt Ltd 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10
Market City Management Co. Pvt Ltd. 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10
Mindstone Mall Developers Private Limited 813.74 28B7.45 813.74| 287.45
lMuiwart Land Holding Private Limited 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10
Offbeat Developers Private Limited 1939.06 1481.29 1,939.06(1,481.29
Palladium Construction Pvt Ltd - Agra. 139.83 120.23 139.83] 120.23
Pallazzio Hotels & Leisures Ltd 0.00 7.26 0.00 7.26
Phoenix Digital Technologies Private Limited 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10
Phoenix Logistics & Industrial Parks Pvt Ltd 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10
Pinnacle Real Estate Pvt Ltd 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10
Plutocrat Commercial Real Estate Private 200.54 357.35
Limited 200.54| 357.35
|Rentcierge Developers Pvt Ltd 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10
Sangam Infrabuild Corp Pvt Ltd. 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10
Savana Phoenix Private Limited 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10
SGH Realty LLP 1179.09 2062.94 1,179.09|2,062.94
Sparkle Two Mall Developers Pvt Ltd. 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10
Sparkleone Mall Developers Pvt Ltd. 3213.39 2237.70 3,213.39|2,237.70
Starboard Hotels Pvt Ltd 359.81 112.82 359.81| 112.82
The Phoenix Mills Ltd 628.45 258.16 628.45| 258.16
Thoth Mall & Commercial Real Estate Pvt Ltd 12.82 0.10 12.82 0.10
True Value Infrabuild LLP 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10
Upal Developers Pvt Ltd 139.26 135.08 139.26] 135.08
Vamona Developers Pvt Ltd 1403.16 1635.50 1,403.16]1,635.50

2 |Reimbursment of Exp

Alyssum Developers Pvt Ltd 0.00 2.37 0.00 2.37
Classic Mall Development Ltd 0.00 14.80 0.00] 14.80
Destiny Retail Mall Developers Private Limited 0.00 11.18 0.00] 11.18
Insight Mall Developers Pvt Ltd 0.00 2.07 0.00 2.07
|stand Star Mall Developers pvt Ltd 0.00 15.97 0.00 15.92
Offbeat Developers Private Limited - Mall 0.00 8.81 0.00 8.81
Palladium Construction Pvt Ltd - Agra 0.00 2.37 0.00 2.37
The Phoenix Mills Ltd 0.00| 30.29902 0.00]  30.30
Pallazzio Hotels & Leisures Ltd 6.15 0.00 6.15 0.00
‘Yamona Developers Pvt Ltd 0.00 18.29 0.00 18.29
3 |Other Expenses
Bellona Hospitality Services Ltd 10.40 0.00 10.40 0.00
R.R. Hoslery Private Limited 3.30] 0.00 3.30 0.00
R.R. Hasiery 17.92] 0.00 17.92 0.00
4 [RentE
The Phoenix Mills Ltd 121.50 128.37 121.50| 128.37
R.R. Hosiery Private Limited 30.18) 0.00 30.18 0.00
R.R. Hosiery 150.61| 71.18 150.61] 71.18
5 |Administrativ
i 70.6R| 2R.34| 70.68] 28.34
]
0.00/113.45 0.00 113.65
Kev Managerial Personnel of Holding Company 277.06|247.76 277.06| 247.76
Director 21.52
7 _|Dividend Paid
The Phoenix Mills Ltd 6000.00 - 6,000.00 0.00
8 |Donation
Aakar Charitable Trust 210 5.00 2.10 5.00
9

30.00| 30.00| 30.00f 30.00
52.70 = 52.70 0.00




34.02 Amount due to/from related party as on:

r.No. Closing Balance Category | | C y ll| Category lilj Category IV | Category V Total
1_| Trade Receivables
I——{ The Phoenix Mills Ltd 97.74 97.74
50.70 50.70
| Blackwood Developers Private Limited. 10.29 10.29
(29.55) (29.55)
|—— Vamona Developers Private Limited. 101.82 101.82
(2.24) (2.24)
|——{ Upal Develoers Private Limited. 0.65 0.65
(27.10 (27.10)
— Island Star Mall Developers Private Limited 233,32 233.32
(219.87) {219.87)
—— Insight Mall Developers Private Limited 39.95 39.95
(2.03) (2.03)
- sparkle One Mall Developers Private Limited 973.01 973.01
I——1 Alyssum Developers Private Ltd 1.08 1.08
(672.74) (672.74)
i——1 Classic Mall Development Co Limited 13.87 13.87
(98.58) (98.58)
|——{ Offbeat Developers Private Limited. 115.29 115.29
{2.24) (2.24)
—— Graceworks Realty & Leisures Pvt Ltd. 19.61 19.61
(779.78) (779.78)
[—— Destiny Retail Mall Developers Private Limited 7-’; ‘f: 26 15
YT Malt Develop Pyt Ltd C:.‘l()) 0.10
-——! Alliance Spaces Pvt Ltd 9(-4-‘; 9.43
|—— Bellona Hospitality Services Ltd 2{-02) 2.02
\—— Enhance Holding Pvt Ltd. 0(2‘: 0.24
—— Plutocrat Commercial Real Estate Private Ltd 4(4‘; 4.46
|——{ Savana Phoenix Private Limited. C;-z‘; 0.24
I SGH Realty LLP 438.85 438.85
{2,223.09) (2,223.09)
—— True Value LLP t:-Z‘; 0.24
|——| Butala Land Farms Pvt Ltd 0(24) 0.24
1 Phoenix Digital Technologies Private Limited (:2‘; 0.24
—— Starboard Hotels Private Limited 0r3§ 0.38
2 | Securi its
|——{ Classic Mall Development Co Limited 125.00 125.00
{125.00) {125.00)
3 | Investment in Equity Shares
|——{ Columbus Investment Advisory Private Limited. 55.50 §5.50
(55.50) (55.50)
4 | Unbilled Revenue
——{ The Phoenix Mills Ltd 00 o oo
— Blackwood Developers Private Limited. = -
(38.68) (38.68)
——1 Palladium Construction Pvt ltd. y -
(41.63) (41.63)
|—— Vamona Developers Private Limited. 117.66 117.46
(273.38) 1273.38)|
U i imited. : 3
pal Develoers Private Limited @79 e
|—{ Island Star Mall Developers Private Limited B3:87 85.87
(183.40)
+——— Columbus Investment Advisory Private Limited. = "
©.10)
——{ Insight Mall Developers Private Limited
—| Sparkle One Mall Developers Private Limited
—— Alyssum Developers Private Ltd
I—— Classic Mall Development Co Limited
(172.43)
i i 419.82
|—— Offbeat Developers Private Limited. o7 o)
I Graceworks Realty & Leisures Pvt Ltd. i:-i:
|—— Destiny Retail Mall Developers Private Limited Z -
(95.05) (95.09)




Mindstone Mall Devel Pyt Ltd 185.91 185.91
= 162.00 162.00
—— Pinnacle Real Estate Private Limited = -
(0.10) (0.10)
+——{ Alliance Spaces Pvt Ltd = =
(2.80) (2.80)|
|——— Bellona Hospitality Services Ltd = =
(2.80) (2.80)|
|—— Big Apple Real estate Pvt Ltd = z
(0.10) {0.10)
— Finesse Mall & Commercial Real Estate Pvt Ltd - =
(0.10)] (0.10}
— Enhance Holding Pvt Ltd. - =
(0.10) (0.10)
——{ Gangetic Developers Pvt Ltd . -
(0.10) 0.10)
|—— Market City Management Pvt Ltd z -
(0.10} {0.10}
—— Mugwort Land Holding Pvt Ltd. ~ =
0.10) {0.10}
—— Pallazzio Hotels & Leisures Ltd
(6.62) {6.62)
+—— Plutocrat Commercial Real Estate Private Ltd 143.37 143.37
(321.61) {321.61)
— Rentcierge Develapers Pvt Ltd - z
(0.10) (0.10)
—— Sangam Infrabuild Corporation Ltd . -
5 i ©.10) {0.10)
[—— Savana Phoenix Private Limited. - .
(0.10) {0.10)
! SGH Realty LLP 309.13 309.13
162.32 162.32
—— Sparkle Two Mall Developers Pvt Ltd. - -
{0.10) (0.10)
|——{ Thoth Mall & Commercial Real Estate Pvt Ltd 2.70 2.70
(0.10) (0.10)
\— True Value LLP = =
{0.10) (0.10)
— Butala Land Farms Pvt Ltd = -
(0.10) (0.10)]
——{ Phoenix Logistics & Industrial Parks Pvt Ltd = -
(0.10) {0.10)
t——{ Janus Logistics & Industria Parks Pvt Ltd . -
0.10) (0.10)
-1 Phoenix Digital Technologies Private Limited = =
(0.10) (0.10)
| Starboard Hotels Private Limited 45.41 2541
(101.54) (101.54)
I——{ Clasic Housing Projects Pvt Ltd - .
(0.10) (0.10)
5 | Trade Payables
|| The Phoenix Mills Ltd 47.72 47,72
(29.82) {29.82)
|— Bellona Hospitality Services Ltd ‘“““—: 10:40
—— Offbeat Developers Private Limited. 47‘“7'7; 47.72
Key Managerial Personne! of Holding Company (21.60) (21.60)
—— R R Hosiery - 2
—— Pallazzio Hotels & Leisures Ltd 1.25 :
6 | Contract Liabllity
.| Mindstone Mall Development Pvt Ltd 539.20 539.20
(478.14) (4 4
—1 Graceworks Realty & Leisures Pvt Ltd. 325.65 325.65
{423.73) (423.73)
—— Plutocrat Commercial Real Estate Private Ltd 598.69 508.69
7 | Advances
Palladium Construction Pvt ltd. 1”62‘ 1.62)

Figures in brackets are pertaining to the previous year.
The transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions.
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Marketcity Resource Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024
(Amount in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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ix)
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xi}
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For D T S & Associates LLP

Capital management

The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to maximize the shareholder value. The Company’s primary objective when managing capital is to ensure that it maintains an
efficient capital structure and healthy capital ratios and safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as a going concem in order to support its business and provide maximum returns for
shareholders. The Company also proposes to maintain an optimat capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the year

ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023.
For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued capital, share premium and all other equity reserves. Net debt includes, interest bearing loans and borrowings less

cash and short term deposits.

As At As At
Particulars 31-03-2024 31-03-2023
Loans and Borrowings - -
Less: Cash and cash equivalents + Bank Deposits + Investment in Mutual fund 2,635.40 4,037.26
Net Debt (2,635.40) (4,037.26)
Total Capital 8,311.46 8,872.62
Capital+Net Debt 8,311.46 8,872.62

Gearing Ratlo*
*The company does not have any borrowings, accordingly capital gearing ratio cannot be calculated

Capita! Commitments
As of the end of FY 23-24, the company acknowledges a liability of Rs 71.18 Lakhs payable to R.R Hosiery for the security deposit concemning G4 Premises.
Additional regulatory information required by Schedule Ill

Details of benami property held - .
No proceedings have been initfated on or are pending against the company for holding benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and Rules made

Borrowing secured against current assets

The Company does not have borrowings from banks & financial Institution on the basis of security of current assets.

Wilful defaulter
The company does not have borrowings from banks and financial institutions on the bass of security of current assets.

Relationship with struck off companies
The company has no transactions with companies struck off under Companies Act, 2013 or Companies Act, 1936.

Regfstration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies
There are no charges or satisfaction which are yet to be registered with the Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period.

Compllance with number of layers of companies
The company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013,

Compliance with approved scheme(s) of arrangements
The company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current financial year.

Undisclosed Income
The company has not surrendered or disclosed as income during the current or previous year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961, that has not been recorded in the books of

Details of crypto currency or virtual currency
The company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the current or previous year.,

Valuation of PP&E & intangible asset
The company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) or intangible assets during the current or previous year.

(refer note no 5 & 6A)
Utilisation of borrowed funds, equity and Share premium

The company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(les), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the

Intermediary shall:
a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

b.  provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries
The company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or

otherwise) that the company shall:
a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities {dentified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
b.  provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficlaries

Previous year figures have been regrouped, reworked, rearranged and reclassified , wherever necessary and are to be read in relation to the amount and other disclosure relating to the current y(

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Marketcity Resource Private Limited

Chartered Accountants
Fimm's Registration No : 142412W/W100595 CIN: U55100MH2006PTC159544
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Umesh B. Nayak Arun Sethi Prashant Khandelwal
Partner Director Director
Membership No. 101183 DIN. 10045816 DIN. 08067106

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Place: Mumbai
Date: 14th May 2024

Date: 14th May 2024  Date: 14th May 2024




